
 

 

 

 

 
Department of Commerce, Community, 

and Economic Development 
 

ALCOHOL & MARIJUANA CONTROL OFFICE 
550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1600 

Anchorage, AK 99501 
Main: 907.269.0350

 
MEMORANDUM 

TO: Alcoholic Beverage Control Board DATE: January 21, 2020 
 

RE: 94 & 3658 BPO Elks Lodge 
#1842 

FROM: Glen Klinkhart, Interim Director 

 
Requested 
Action: 

Appeal requirement to transfer or expire one of the two licenses and 
consideration of renewal applications. 

  
Statutory  
Authority: 

AS 04.11.560(a): “An action of an officer, employee, or agent of the board 
relating to the administration or enforcement of this title may be appealed to 
the board by the aggrieved party.” 
 
AS 04.06.090(b):  “The board shall review all applications for licenses made 
under this title and may order the director to issue, renew, revoke, transfer, or 
suspend licenses and permits authorized under this title.” 

 
Staff Rec.:  Uphold staff’s determination to require expiration or the transfer of one license 

and approve the renewal of the remaining license with delegation.  
 
Background:  Our office received both renewal applications on October 16, 2019 and in the course 
of the examiner’s review it was discovered that BPO Elks Lodge #1842 holds both a beverage 
dispensary and a club license at the same location. 
 
The September 27, 1985 Attorney General’s opinion states “We imagine that the board may be 
requiring forfeiture in part because it believes that licensed premise should have only one license issued 
to it. We agree that it would be contrary to the general scheme of Title 04 to permit a licensee 
to actually operate under the authority of two separate licenses at a single licensed premises 
and thus to prevent those licenses from becoming available to other premises.” 
 
On November 19, 2019 the previous Records and Licensing Supervision, Ms. Martin, notified the 
licensee in writing that per the above AG’s opinion, two liquor licenses may not exist and operate in the 
same location. She then offers the following options to resolve the matter. 
 

• One of the licenses can be transferred to another location. 
o This license can be transferred to your entity at a different location or 
o It could be transferred to another individual or group at a different location 



 
 

• One of the licenses can be surrendered and expired (without renewal, both licenses will expire 
naturally on February 28th, 2020) 

 
On December 11, 2019 our office received the licensee’s request to appeal staff’s decision. 
 
 
Attachments: Licensee request 
  Diagrams 
    RLS Notification Letter 
   Attorney General's Opinion 
    94 & 3658 Renewal Applications 
 
 
   
 



 

      
A Fraternal Organization 

  Palmer Elks Lodge #1842 
2600 N. Barry’s Resort Drive, Wasilla, Alaska 99654 Phone (907) 745-3950 Fax (907) 361-3969 

Email: palmerelks@yahoo.com      Website: www.palmerelks.org 

 
 
 
January 3, 2020 
 
Alcohol & Marijuana Control Office 
Attn: Ms. Carrie Craig 
550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1600 
Anchorage, Alaska 99502 
 
RE: Liquor License Premises 
       Beverage Dispensary License #94 & 
       Club License #3658 
 
Dear Ms. Craig, 
 
Thank you for your email of December 12th acknowledging our licenses referenced above have 
been deemed complete and for confirmation of the schedule for our appeal of the requirement to 
transfer or expire one of the two licenses. 
 
In my December 11th email, I requested copies of the premises diagrams on file for each of the 
licenses as well as a copy of the Attorney General’s opinion cited in the original November 19th 
letter received from AMCO.  I requested those items to try to get an understanding of what 
changed since we acquired Dispensary License #94 but, have yet to receive them.  
  
Palmer Lodge has held both licenses for approximately 23 years without violation.  During our 
review we discovered an error in our applications indicating that both licenses were used on a daily 
basis.  This statement, while an oversight on our part, is erroneous. The Lodge has never operated 
both licenses at the same time.  If Club License #3658 is used, there are no sales under Dispensary 
License #94 and vice versa.  As to the same licensed premises space for each license, only one 
license is used on any given day.   Therefore, the same licensed premises space diagram was 
submitted for each license.   
 
The November 19th AMCO letter suggested several ways to resolve the issue: 

 Surrender one license and let it expire. 
 Transfer one license to another individual/group at a different Location. 
 Transfer one license to ourselves at another location. 

 
The first suggestion of surrender and letting expire is a total loss of compensation on an asset the 
Lodge has held for approximately 23 years.  Suggestion 2, although possibly viable, would most 
likely take more time to find another individual/group and different location than the February 28th 
deadline would allow.  
 



The optimum for Palmer Lodge would be to continue working as we have been under Club 
License #3658 and its current premises space diagram and using Dispensary License #94 in the 
same space diagram, as a minimum, the number of days required to keep it current and in good 
standing.  Use of Dispensary License #94 in conjunction with facility rentals is a selling point 
for rentals and an income generator to help cover facility operations and maintenance costs.  
(See Option 1 licensed premises diagram drawings attached.)  
 
Suggestion 3 may be a viable solution.  I am aware of other instances where two licenses are in 
use at the same location and apparently in compliance with your Office, albeit in both cases, the 
premises space diagrams are different, i.e. different floors, different control points, etc.  Some 
relatively simple building modifications on our part may be able to be made to provide access 
control and delineate the two different licensed premises areas to comply with the intent of you 
letter.  I have attached Option 2 licensed premises diagram drawings with possible layouts for 
use of the two licenses for your review and discussion with the Alcoholic Beverage Control 
Board during the appeal. 
 
I look forward to working with you to resolve this issue. 

Fraternally,  

 

W. Michael Southcott, PER 
Palmer Elks Lodge #1842 
907-982-7301 Cell 
mmsouth@mtaonline.net 
          

 
 

 
 
   

 
 
 
 

 
  
                                                                                     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 











From: WILLIAM SOUTHCOTT
To: Alcohol Licensing, CED ABC (CED sponsored)
Subject: Re: 94 Application Completion Notice
Date: Wednesday, December 11, 2019 12:18:34 PM

Randi, 

Thank you for your assistance last week regarding the two liquor licenses (Beverage
Dispensary License #94 & Club License #3658) held by BPO Elks Lodge No. #1842.  As
stated during our conversation, Palmer Lodge has had these licenses since +/- 1996.  To my
knowledge, we have had them without violation since that time.
 
As requested, would you please provide a copy of the Attorney General's opinion that your
November 19th letter references.  In addition, would you also include copies of the premises
diagrams for each of our licenses.  I am aware of other instances where two licenses are in use
at the same location and apparently in compliance with your Office.  Assuming this is a matter
of the premises diagrams for each license and access control to each of the delineated areas, it
would seem to be a relatively easy issue for us to resolve and comply with the intent of your
letter with a few changes to ours.  We have never used both licenses at the same.  It appears
using one or the other license, but not both at the same time in the same delineated area, will
no longer be acceptable.           
 
My biggest concern is the timing of the letter and the amount of time available to remedy the
situation.  We have held the dispensary license for about 23 years without incident and now
appear to be poised to lose the asset without cause on our part.  I respectively request a time
extension for late fees, etc. while we work with AMCO to resolve this issue.
 
Fraternally,

Mike Southcott, PER
Palmer Elks Lodge #1842
(907) 982-7301 Cell
mmsouth@mtaonline.net

From: "alcohol licensing" <alcohol.licensing@alaska.gov>
To: "Mike Southcott" <mmsouth@mtaonline.net>
Cc: "alcohol licensing" <alcohol.licensing@alaska.gov>
Sent: Monday, December 2, 2019 1:11:01 PM
Subject: 94 Application Completion Notice

Good Afternoon:
 
This email is to inform you that your application for Liquor License #94 may be deemed complete
once you have taken appropriate action on the letter attached.
 
Thanks,
 
Randi Baker
Occupational Licensing Examiner
Alcohol and Marijuana Control Office
Phone: 907.269.0350 

mailto:alcohol.licensing@alaska.gov


alcohol.licensing@alaska.gov
marijuana.licensing@alaska.gov

P  Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

 
Any guidance provided by this electronic communication is not a binding legal opinion, ruling, or interpretation that may be relied upon, but merely guidance concerning

existing statutes and regulations. There may be other unique or undisclosed facts, circumstances, and information that may have changed any guidance provided in this

communication.

 
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication is intended for the sole use of the individual or entity to whom it is addressed, is covered by the Electronic

Communications Privacy Act (18 USC § 2510-2521), and may contain Confidential Official Use Only Information that may be exempt from public release under the

Freedom of Information Act (5 USC § 552). If you are not the intended recipient, you are prohibited from disseminating, distributing, or copying any information

contained in this communication.

 
The State of Alaska cannot guarantee the security of e-mails sent to or from a state employee outside the state e-mail system. If you are not the intended recipient or

receive this communication in error, please notify the sender by reply e-mail and delete the original message and all copies from your computer.
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